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NRC; FOAM 5111M "'ART 1 u.s NUCLIiAIt RECJULATORV COMQl3SION 
(0&.2010) 
10CflR ;t2D1 

SAFETY INSPECTION REPORT AND COMPLIANCE INSPECTION 


1. I.lceNSEE/L.OCATlON INSPECTED: 2, NRCIREGIONAL OFFiCe 

West Branch Regional Medical Center 
2463 South M-30 
West Branch, MI 48661 

u.s. Nuclear Regulatory Commission 
S'~ion III
Z443 Warrenville Roadl Suite 210 
Lisle, Illinois 60532-4351 

REPORT NuMBER{S) 2011·01 
3. 	DOCKET NUMSeA(S) 4 I.ICENSEE NUMBER(S) s OATE(S) OF INSPEc,.ION 

030~11321 21-18892-01 JUI1Il! 22 and July 28, 2011 1 
LICENSee; 

The inspection W1U\ an examinatIon of the actilfities conducted und~r your license alii they fe~ate to radi.tlon safety and to 
oompllance with the Nuclear RegYlatory C\)mm\SSlion (NRC) rules and regulations and the conditions of your license. The 
inspection consisted of selec~i"e examinations of prooedures and representative r~cord$, 4ntt:1'Views with personn~I, ~nd 
obsel'\lstione. by the Inspector. The InspectIon findings are as follows: 

o 1. 	 8ased On the InspeCtion lindinss, no violations Wtlre idenUl'1ed. 

o 2. 	 Previous violation(s) olosed. 

o 	 2. The violatlon(!;l), specifk:aily described to you by the Inspector as non-cited violations, are not being c:it(':d because 
they were self.iClentifietl, non-repetitive, and correctiva action was ot is being taken, and the remaining criteria in 
the NRC Enforcement POlicy, NUREG-1&lO, to exerdse di;cretion, were satisfied 

____Non.-cited violation(s) were discussed involving the rollowing reqUirement.{s}: 

(;luring this inspection eertail'l ofyout activities, as described below and/or attached, were in violation of N~C~4. 
re~uirements and are being cited. This form Is Cit NOTiCe OF VIOLATION, which may be subject to posting in 

accordance with 1D CFR 19.11 

Title 10 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) 35,67(g) requires that a licensee in 
possession of sealed sources or brachytherapy sourc9~, except for garnme 
sterC!lotactic radiosurgery sources, shall conduct a serni-annual physical 
inventory of all such soure" in its pO$Session. Tho licensee shall rotain each 
inventory record in accordance with § 3S.20G7(b). 

Continued on Part 2 

Stalemont of CDl"I'edfvo Actlo"s 

I hereby st.'itt! that, within 30 days, tho actions described by me to the Inspectorwfll tit;! taken to correct tha 
violations identified. This stat9ment of corrective actions is made in accordance with the requiremonts of 10 CFR 
~,201 (corrective utops alrewuy taken, correetive steps which will be t:lken, date: when fun (;ompl1anct! will be 

achIeved). IlJnd~"!dand th::at no further wrl(tan respo~1;! to NRC wlll be requln!!d. unlestl ~f'eClflcally Mquestad. 


l.ICENSEE'S 
REPRESEN1'A'I'tvE 
NRC INSPECTOR 

Robert P. Hays 1(~If~·1 ...., 8119/2011
~-v .. A 

Tamara E, Bloomer ~LOtAa. ~~ ~. ~?/)/I cf 
NRC: J:ORM 5!l1M PART 1(0&-21'110) / 
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NRC FORM 591M PART 2 
(OS.201Q) 
10 CFR 2.201 

u.s NUCl.EAR REGULATORY COMMISSION 

SAFETY INSPECTION REPORT AND COMPLIANCE INSPECTION 

1 1.1CENSE!F'IlOCATlON tN$PECn;C: 

Wost Branch Regionallllledical Center 
2463 South M·3Q 
West Branch, MI 48661 
REPORT NUMBER(S\ 2011..()f 

2. NRCJREGIONAL. OFfice 
UR,S. Nuclear Reoulatory Commisf;;on 
~,gjon III 
244a Warrenville Road, Sui~e 210 
Lisle. '1IInols 60532-4351 

3. OOeK!T NUMSER{S) 

030.17321 

4. I.ICE:NSE! NIJMBE~(G) 

21-18892-01 

5. OATe(S) Of INSPt:CTION 

June 22 and July. 28, 2011 
(Continued) 

Contrary to the above. the licensee has not conducted a Semi.,Annual inventory of 
brachytherapy sources as required. Specifically, th~ liceru$ee hQS not conducted a 
semi-annual inventory of the brachytherapy seed.,. used for prostate implants since 
January 20, 2008. The IicenQl;¥e h3s maintained a rocord of unused brac:hytherapy seeds 
placed in $.torago, but failed to conduct a semi-annuaf inventory of those seeds in 
storage to ensure that no ~eeds have become lost or unaccounted for. 

This is a Severity level IV violation (:Section 6.3,. 

The licensee's medical physicist believed that an annual inventory was required rather 
than a semi"annual inventory. The licensee's corrective actions wm b" to conduct an 
inventory of the brachytherapy seeds with the next 30 days and will continue to conduct 
an inventory of the brachytherapy seed'S semi-annually as required. 

NRC i=ORM SlI1M PART 7.(03.20101 
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NRC FORM 591M PART 3 (06-2010) 

NRC FORM 591 M PART 3 U.S. NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION 
(06-2010) 
10 CFR 2.201 Docket File Information 

SAFETY INSPECTION REPORT AND COMPLIANCE INSPECTION 

1. LICENSEE 2. NRC/REGIONAL OFFICE 
West Branch Regional Medical Center U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission 
2463 South M-30 R~gjon III 

2443 Warrenville Road. Suite 210West Branch, MI 48661 
Lisle, Illinois 60532-4301 

REPORT NUMBER(S) 2011-01 
3. DOCKET NUMBERIS) 4. LICENSE NUMBER(S) 5. DATE(S) OF INSPECTION 

03017321 21-18892-01 1 June 22, 2011 
6. INSPECTION PROCEDURES 7. INSPECTION FOCUS AREAS 

87131 (10/24/02) 03.01-03.07 
SUPPLEMENTAL INSPECTION INFORMATION 

1.PROGRAM 3. LICENSEE CONTACT 4. TELEPHONE NUMBERI 2. PRIORITi 
2120 M. Waack, M.D., RSO 1 989-345-3660 

~ Main Office Inspection Next Inspection Date: June 2014 

D Field Office Inspection 

D Temporary Job Site Inspection ____________________ 

PROGRAM SCOPE 

The licensee was authorized for two locations in West Branch, Michigan, with authorization by 
the license at the main campus, 2463 S. M-30, to use any byproduct materials for diagnostic 
and therapeutic medical procedures under 10 CFR 35.100,35.200,35.300, and 35.400. The 
second location, West Branch Regional Cancer Center, 2431 S. M-30, is authorized to use any 
byproduct materials for diagnostic medical procedures under 10 CFR 35.100 and 35.200, 
excluding PET isotopes and Xe-133. Cardiac stress testing at the Cancer Center was inspected 
during the prior inspection and was not reviewed during the current inspection. 

The licensee's main Nuclear Medicine Department routinely conducts a daily average of 4-6 
patient studies with a staff of 2 nuclear medicine technologists. lodine-131 procedures 
requiring a written directive average one or two procedures per year. One administration of 
Sr-89 has been performed since the previous inspection. The licensee receives licensed 
material as unit doses and bulk pertechnetate from an area local nuclear pharmacy as needed. 

The licensee periodically performs iodine-125 seed implant procedures and averages 3 cases 
per year. Implant records are maintained in the dosimetry files in the Cancer Center for review. 
Unused seeds are stored for decay in the main campus hot lab. 

Performance Observations 

During the inspection, the licensee's NMT staff demonstrated/discussed: (1) survey instruments 
and required surveys; (2) package receipt and check-in procedures; (3) wipe test counting; 
(4) unit dose and safe handling procedures; (5) 1-131 procedures and written directives; 
(6) waste handling; (7) sealed source inventories and leak tests; (8) security and storage of 
licensed material; (9) radiation safety program audit results; (10) dosimetry for CY 2009: 472mr
ODE; 1830mr-finger; and CY 2010: 425mr-DDE; 1380mr-finger. The inspector performed 
independent and confirmatory radiation measurements, which indicated results consistent with 
licensee survey records and postings. A SL IV violation of 10 CFR 35.76(g) was identified for a 
failure to perform semi-annual inventories of brachytherapy seeds. 
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